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BERLESDUNA ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the purposes of both a
trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The academy trust operates 8 academies for pupils aged 4 to 11 with some academies having nurseries taking
children from aged 2. We currently service a catchment area of Basildon, Billericay and Woodham Ferrers and
at the spring 2020 census we had a total on roll of 3196 pupils (including the schools that joined in summer
2020) from a capacity of 3392.

Structure, governance and management
Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The academy trust was incorporated on 7 July 2016, in the name of Berlesduna Academy Trust. Merrylands
Primary School and Nursery, the Willows Primary School and Nursery and Whitmore Primary School and
Nursery commenced as academies on 01 October 2016 and Crays Hill Primary School joined the trust on 01
May 2018. Felmore Primary School joined on 01 September 2018, Cherry Tree Primary School joined on 01
April 2019, Fairhouse Primary School joined 01 May 2019 and St Marys Church of England Primary School
joined 01 July 2020. The academy trust has entered into a funding agreement with the Department for Education
which provides the framework within which the academy trust must operate

The trustees of Berlesduna Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved,
are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees' indemnities

In accordance with the Articles of Association, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and Article
6.3 every trustee or other officer or auditor of the Company and every member of any local Governing Body and/
or Advisory Body (in so far as necessary) shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
liability incurred by them in their capacity in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgement is given in favour or in which they are acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is
granted to them by the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty of trust in relation to the affairs
of the Company.




BERLESDUNA ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees
The initial Members of the trust shall be the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association.

The subsequent Members of the Trust shall comprise:

° The signatories of the Memorandum
° Those appointed by the Members through the passing of a Special Resolution

When required, new Trustees may be approached for recruitment through Academy Ambassadors.

The Secretary of State for Education may appoint trustees in certain circumstances; no such appointments were
made in the year under review.

Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be reappointed or re-elected.

A Trustee shall cease to hold office if they resign their office by notice to the Academy (but only if at least 4
Trustees will remain in office when the notice of resignation is to take effect).

A Trustee shall cease to hold office if they are removed by the person or persons who appointed them. The
Article does not apply in respect of a Parent Trustee.

wmmmmmm\____mmm

Trustees are provided with copies of all essential documentation needed to undertake their role including the
Memorandum and Articles of Association, Academies Financial Handbook and Academy Trust's Funding
Agreement.

A Trustee Handbook with key information is available for all Trustees. This includes such aspects as:

The structure of the academy and the relationship with the Board of Trustees

A statement of values and expectations

Key elements of effective governance and the link to the Ofsted Handbook

The committee structure of the Board of Trustees

A brief description of the role of the Chair and the role of the Clerk/Company Secretary
Terms of reference for Committees .

e @ ¢ 0o o o

The Board of Trustees receive training organised by the Trust and are informed of external training opportunities.

New Trustees are mentored by existing Trustees.

Organisational structure
The board of trustees of Berlesduna Academy Trust is constituted under the memorandum and articles of

association. The board of trustees is responsible for ensuring high standards of corporate governance are
ma:ntamed .

Trustees - The Directors Board - including Chief Executive Officer

The Board is responsible for setting high standards and levels of student achievement and for monitoring
performance and ensuring accountability. It is tasked with driving continuous improvement through regular
review planning and evaluation activities. It also manages corporate communication and stakeholder
engagement. Once strategies have been agreed, the Board delegates most operational activity to the Executive
Leadership Team. There are also Trust standing committees which have duties to support the Board with these
responsibilities, to focus on the delivery of the vision against the Trust standards and engage with stakeholders
internally and externally-to-ensure that the-needs are being met.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of Trustees of the Board, this is a separate committee and the core function of the
committee covers all financial services and other resources and facilities. It has a critical role in overseeing
budget formulation, monitoring, and treasury management. The financial functions extend into value for money
and procurement. The committee also receives and considers in detail the statutory accounts for the Trust and
recommends them to the full Board of Directors for approval prior to presentation to the Trust Members. It
recommends the appointment of the external auditors to the Board of Directors for subsequent approval by the
Trust Members.

Local Governing Body :
The Board also has established committees known as ‘local governing bodies’ for each school within the
Trust. Their role is to oversee all matters relating to pupils’ learning and wellbeing. The core function of a local
governing body covers all factors which relate to, and underpin, good teaching and learning. It has a critical role
in monitoring the progress and impact of personalised learning interventions to ensure high standards and pupil
outcomes in line with the Trusts vision and strategy. Each of the schools within the Trust has a maximum of
eleven governing body members, compromising:

* Headteacher

o 2 staff governors

* at least 2 co-opted/community governors

o atleast 2 parent governors

Trust Executive Leadership Team

The Executive Leadership Team has corporate responsibility for the overall formulation and implementation of
strategies and policies approved by the Directors. It comprises the Chief Executive Officer, Head of Finance and
Operations, HR Director and the Headteacher/Head of School from each school.

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

The role of the CEO is to support the substantive Headteacher/Head of School in their role and to assist in the
development of staff across the schools and identify ways in which the Trust can facilitate, provide and develop
school improvement. The CEO is responsible for the day to day operation of the Trust and is accountable to the
Directors. The CEO will lead the strategic and operational development of the Teaching School Alliance and
work alongside the NQT leads of each school within the Trust.

Head of Finance and Operations ;

The Head of Finance and Operations will report directly to the CEO of the Academy Trust. They will be part of
the Executive Leadership Team at Trust level and will be expected.to work in collaboration with senior leaders
across the Trust. The core purpose of the role is to strategically lead and manage the business innovation and
financial aspects of the schools and will play a significant role in meeting the needs of other schools that may
consider joining the Trust in the future.

HR Director

Reporting directly to the CEO of the Academy Trust, the HR Director is part of the Senior Leadership Team at
Trust level and will provide strategic HR guidance and support to senior leaders and Headteachers across the
Trust. The HR Director will also provide HR guidance on day to day matters of a more complex nature and will
support the Trust when schools join the Trust in the future.

School Improvement and Development Lead (SIDL)

To support the CEO with school improvement and Trust development the SIDL leads the Merrylands Teacher
Training Partnership;, overseas NQT recruitment and development, line manages Trust educational support staff,
mentors new Head Teachers and leads the Trust leadership pathways training. .
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Leadership in Schools
Each school within the Trust will have its own structure of leadership depending on its own circumstance and
context.

The Trust Pupil Voice
The Trust Pupil Voice gives pupils the opportunity to share their views with both the Trust and the schools.
Made up of two selected pupils from each school, the Pupil Voice follow a self-developed Pupil Voice Charter,
which forms their ethos and structure which themselves and future ambassadors will work by. The ambassadors
will represent their school and allow the pupils to share their views with the Trust which will give them the
opportunity to work together with pupils from each school. The purpose of the Trust Pupil Voice is:

* to represent pupils’ views from each school

 to reach out to and work with, the schools, the Trust and beyond

> to make one small idea part of one big decision for everyone and improve all the schools within the

Trust ’ :
* to see everyone as equal and be democratic
* to form an established pupil voice in each school, under The Trust

The Trust Pupil Voice meets half termly and will be joined by the Chief Executive Officer of the Trust.

The Chief Executive is the ‘Accounting Officer’ of Berlesduna Academy Trust.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personneli

The setting of pay and remuneration for the Chief Executive is conducted by the Chair of the Trust and two other
Trustees as part of the Performance Management Cycle. Once this is conducted the Chief Executive and Chair
of each local Governing Body set the pay of individual Headteachers as part of their performance management
cycle. Each Headteacher carries out the performance management of their staff with the support of the CEO and
" recommendations are put to each Local Governing Body Pay Committee. The CEO sets the pay and
remuneration for centralised staff.

Trade union facility time
We have no one in any of the schools currently that is a trade union representative.

Engagement with employees
Employee Information Policy
Each Academy includes 1 staff member on its local governing body and has the CEO as ex-officio Governor.
This ensures that:
¢ Employees’ views are taken into account on decisions affecting their interests; and
* There is a common awareness on the part of all employees of all factors that affect the academy trust’s
performance

Berlesduna Academy Trust aiso undertakes discussions with employees and their unions when making
decisions that affect employee interests to ensure that employees' views are reflected in decisions made and
their interests are protected. )

Berlesduna Academy Trust recognises that staff is its most important resource and are to be valued, supported
and encouraged to develop personally and professionally within a learning and caring community. The Trust has
a policy in place to provide a document that embraces the many school practices that support staff health and
well-being, to minimise the harm from stress and ensure there is cohesion and progress in working towards the
health and well-being of all staff.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Trust and each individual school will:

°

Provide personal and professional development that incorporates regular opportunities for learning and
practicing skills such as — team building, management of change, stress management, assertiveness,
communications etc. either as whole-school training, or when identified by individuals either during
performance management or during particularly difficult periods

Provide a range of strategies for involving staff in school decision-making processes, such as through the
work of the Trust Well-being Forum, surveys on particular developments (e.g. positive behaviour, curriculum
reviews, reporting), and opportunities for involvement in Focus Groups designed around key issues of
school improvement.

Operate a sensitive and negotiated appraisal system linked to clear job specifications (see Performance
Management Policy)

Provide a non-judgmental confidential support system such as a staff mentor at times of need, and
specifically for new members of staff and those in new positions (including support for senior management).

Provide extra support at certain times of difficulty either through counselling from the HR Manager, Head of
Finance and Operations, support from Life-Coaching or counselling through Occupational Heaith.

Work towards an ethos where all staff feel valued and where respect, empathy and genuineness are the
cornerstones of school relationships.

Continually reflect on and work towards achieving school improvement in terms of the ‘Health and well-
being’.

Reguilarly review the demands on teacher time spent on paperwork and administration and seek practical
alternative solutions wherever possible. :

Respond sensitively and flexibly to unavoidable external pressures that impact on staff lives.

Maintain regular contact with staff when they are absent for long periods of time, both during the absence
and also on returning to work.

Maintain positive staff- student relationships to ensure an effective teaching and learning environment. (See
Behaviour Policies).

Survey staff annhally on issues related to well-being and work-life balance and produce an action plan in
relation to findings.

The school have now set up a Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) with the aim that this will be made up of
members of staff from with the Trust.

Schools in the Trust and the Trust itself is working hard to ensure it is COVID-19 compliant and all the Risk *
Assessments required at the present time are available on the school websites and are continually updated.

The Academy Trust's policy on equal opportunities outlines the commitment of the staff and Governors of
Berlesduna Academy Trust to ensure that equality of opportunity is available to all members of the Trust
community. For our Trust this means, not simply treating everybody the same but, understanding and tackling
the different barriers which could lead to unequal opportunity achievements and strengths of all members of the
School community. These include:

» Students

Teaching staff

Support staff

Parents / carers

Community governors

Multi-agency staff linked to the Trust
Visitors to the Trust and-academies
Students on placement
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 ’ '

The trustees believe that equality at the Trust should permeate all aspects of Trust life and is the responsibility of
every member of the Trust and wider community. Every member of the Trust community should feel safe,
secure, valued and of equal worth.

At Berlesduna Academy Trust, equality is a key principle for treating all people the same irrespective of their
gender, ethnicity, disability, religious beliefs, sexual orientations, age or any other recognised area of
.discrimination.

Berlesduna Academy Trust is an Equal Opportunities Employer and is committed to the employment of people
with disabilities and guarantees an interview for those who meet minimum selection criteria. Berlesduna
Academy Trust provides training and development for its employees, including people with disabilities, tailored
where appropriate, to ensure they have the opportunity to achieve their potential. If a Berlesduna Academy Trust
employee becomes disabled while in our employment, Berlesduna Academy Trust will do its best to retain them,
including consulting them about their requirements, making reasonable and appropriate adjustments, and
providing alternative suitable provisions.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The schools in the Berlesduna Academy Trust are members of the Basildon Education Partnership (BEP), a
registered charity created and driven by Basildon Headteachers to deliver a high-quality school improvement
and continuing professional development programme to all member schools. The partnership is based on the
belief that all schools prosper best when working together, enabling each to draw on the potential and capacity
of all other schools in Basildon, regardless of their legal status.

We have no other related parties.

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The Academy Trust has clear strategic aims built on the mission and values. The three year corporate business
plan sets out the following objectives to ensure that, as a Trust, all stakeholder groups understand and have
belief in the approach. We will deliver:

Strategic Priority 1 Fostering a culture of high aspiration ‘

Context ' . '

Leaders and staff in all our schools are working very hard to give our children the best education that they can.
However, current provision is not enabling enough children to achieve excellent outcomes across all key stages
nor in all schools.

The Trust is fully committed to enabling .our learners and their families to overcome any barriers they currently
face and empowering them to develop an aspirant mind set. Moving forward, we will undoubtedly be stronger
together; we will have the capacity to deliver an excellent education to all and to transform lives.

Strategic Priority 2 Developing Exemplary Behaviours and Attitudes )
Context :

As a result of our strong focus on behaviour and attitudes, our children behave well in class. Pupil Voice is loud
and clear about the desire for high standards, consistently applied in order to create an excellent climate for
learning. Out of lessons, children behave in an orderly fashion and have respect for their school community.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Strategic Priority 3 ~A High Quality Education

Context

The principle of developing and offering a curriculum that meets the needs of children in Basildon and Essex is
central to our curriculum strategy. We recognise that all schools need to develop the curriculum to ensure that it
is entirely relevant and responsive. All our schools are well on their way to a truly personalised curriculum for
their local community. Currently, the quality of teaching and learning is largely good: there are areas of good
practice in all our schools but there are also areas that need to improve. We recognise that there must be a
baseline of consistent good practice evident in every lesson, for all learners, in all year groups.

Strategic Priority 4 - Developing Trust Staff

Context

For our children to enjoy a truly excellent experience we must provide consistently high quality teaching backed
by seamlessly integrated support services. Staff motivation and skills are key to the quality of our learners’
experience and staff development and morale are central to the Trust's vision. Our leaders and managers also
play a key role. Strong and effective leadership provides the framework under which teaching and support staff
can flourish. Effective leaders and managers help create an organisational culture which stimulates and
motivates staff and drives continual improvement. Our staff are therefore our most valued asset and accordingly
investing in our people is a key strategic priority for the Trust.

Strategic Priority 5§ Developing our Facilities, Resources and Marketing

Context

The Trust Head of Finance and Operations has been working with the Estates Manager and external
contractors to obtain building condition surveys of the entire estate and put together a rolling programme of
works utilising the School Condition Allocation (SCA) funding, of which the Trust is now eligible. Gaining
access to sites during the COVID period had been challenging as we did not want to jeopardise “bubbles” with
external tradesmen, but the task has now been finalised and contractors are being sought to carry out the
more urgent reparations/maintenance during the school holidays over the next academic year. Overall, the
condition of buildings was found to be satisfactory with works to some rooves and water distribution being
prioritised.

In the short term, much can be done quickly to ensure that the aspirant culture of the Trust is reflected in the
vibrancy of the learning environments in all of our schools. In the med-term, there are substantial opportunities
to strategically invest in, remodel and redevelop our estate, particularly to ensure we have faciliies and
resources in place to deliver a relevant and responsive curriculum for the future. ¢

Strategic Priority 6 Developing Highly Effective Support Services

Context

Support staff play a vital role in contributing to the experience of learners and they are valued members of our
school communities. Currently all our schools operate local arrangements for the provision of support services.
Understandably when taken together our schools’ support services have inconsistent staff structures and job
roles vary considerably from school to school. Accordingly, there are significant opportunities to reconsider how
we best deliver support services across the Trust. In doing so we will seek to develop a more coherent model of
delivery, enhancing the expertise and efficiency of support services, better supporting our learners and our staff.

Strategic Priority 7 Developing Highly Effective Governance

Context

Without doubt highly effective governance is critical to the success of a school. Given the scale of operations of
the Trust our governance arrangements need to be of the very highest calibre. We have therefore set out below
a programme to establish governance arrangements which are fit for purpose and which can drive the
Berlesduna Academy Trust forward.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives, strategies and activities
Priority One: Build Trust capacity to ensure effective school improvement.

Priority Two: Deliver school improvement
Priority Three: Deliver school improvement in schools joining the Trust
Priority Four: Enhancing the governance of the Trust Board

Public benefit
The activities undertaken to further the Academy Trust's purposes for the public benefit are;
o Berlesduna Academy Trust has provided education to all registered students; and
° Partnerships with local Primary schools have been established and maintained. Primary school students
hayve attended educational services at the Academy Trust including sporting, debating, drama and
maths Trust competitions, school induction program for new intakes, and varied sporting activities
hosted by the Academy Trust, and residential visits to the Isle of Wight and various educational visits.

The trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit issued by the
Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties.

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

We rigorously monitor the implemernitation of our strategic plan and use our KPls to assess whether the strategic
goals are on track. We will monitor the plan through the Trust Executive Leadership Team, Board Committees
and through Trust Board meeting to ensure it is achieving what it sets out to achieve. We will also carry out
an annual review of the strategic plan to ensure that it still reflects our MAT's future direction.

Due to the Covid-19 outbreak there were no statutory or non-statutory performance data for this academic year.

Key performance indicators
Governance KPls
1. All Members and Trustees fully understand their duties as company directors and charity trustees as laid
out in the Companies Act 2006 and Charity Commission guidance as exemplified in a skills audit.
2. All schools have a full complement for their Local Governing Bodies, with an appropriate set of skills and
experiences to undertake their defined responsibilities.
3. Leadership and management will be graded at least good in all schools within 30 months of joining the
trust, or at the first section 5 inspection, whichever is soonest.

Financial KPis '

1. Ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness over the use of Trust funds (value for money).

2. Zero red flags in annual audited accounts. '

3. Accounts filed with Companies house for public access and on the Trust website by 31 January of the
following year

4. Trust to submit audited financial statements, auditor's management Ietter and accounts submission
coversheet by 31 December to ESFA.

5. All statutory returns submitted on time.

6. Staffing percentage as a total budget (taking into account EHCP and SEN numbers) is no more than

82%.

Human Resources KPIs

. Staff attendance at least 95% in all schools (contextualised to allow for any unavoidable absence due to
long term sickness or accident.

80% of recently qualified teachers will be retained.

80% of outstanding teachers will be retained.

Pupil to teacher ratios are favourable compared to national levels.

Development opportunities made available to staff to work across schools in the MAT.

—
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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School Standards KPIs

parent, staff and pupil survey data illustrate satisfaction

all schools are fully compliant with health and safety, safeguarding and other statutory requirements

all MAT schools are at least good and/or improve their Ofsted inspection rating (Ofsted)

The percentage of teaching across the MAT that is good or outstanding is at least 90% (Quality of

Education)

That the Pupil Premium Grant is used effectively to ensure disadvantaged pupils make accelerated

progress (Pupil Premium)

6. That the Sports Premium Grant is used effectively to contribute towards the health and welibeing of our

pupils (Sports Premium)

School attendance data is improving including the rate of persistent absence (Attendance)

Schools have a decrease in the numbers of fixed term and permanent exclusions. (Behaviour and

Attitudes)

9. That we fully commit to the Essex Inclusion Statement across all our schools and recogmse Inclusion in

its wider sense (Inclusion)

10. Progress and standards indicators are at ieast in line with national averages for all groups in all schools
indicating a high quality of provision (Quality of Education Outcomes)

Hwb =

o

o~

Review of 2019-2020
Berlesduna performance over time, including End of Key Stage data, attendance, the outcomes of peer reviews
and SIP visits, continues to reflect the journey of an improving multi-academy trust (MAT).

The CEO has.acted to address some important areas in need of improvement across the Trust when required
which has led to improvements across the Trust.

The Trust grew to eight schools during this period — bringing greater capacity to the Trust.

We recognise the individuality of each of the schools and celebrate this through Trust events and staff
collaboration and our involvement with local schools.

Together, we have established strong central leadership and a culture of collaborative learning. While this
approach gives school leaders appropriate autonomy, it is structured within well considered and rigorously
_applied monltonng and review systems.

€

We use our relationship with our local schools and Essex LA to good effect in supporting the schools.

While overall outcomes for Trust pupils are still variable the trend demonstrates an upward trajectory. Progress
of current pupils is was improving prior to the National lockdown.

The proportion of children reaching a good level of development in the Early Years was expected to be above
the national average. Children in the Early Years make consistently good progress in most areas of the
curriculum. Appropriate plans are in place to share good practice more widely and to raise standards further.
Other Trust-wide development priorities include the need to continue to improve the teaching of phonics and
writing in the Reception year. . .

Phonics is a strength across the Trust and we are above the National Average. In 2018 and 2019, at key stage
1, the proportion of pupils meeting the expected standard is expected to be at least in line with the national
average in all subjects. The proportion of pupils who achieved greater depth in each of reading, writing and
mathematics will be lower than the national figure.

At Key Stage 2, the proportion of pupils reaching the expected standard in réading, writing and mathematics was
above the national figure. The proportion of pupils achieving at the higher standard in the combined measure of
reading, writing and mathematics has also improved and-was likely to be at least in line with the national figure.

-1 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Trust leaders are crystal clear in the knowledge that outcomes for all pupil groups need to continue to improve.
Trustees and governors are well informed about the quality of education that each school provides but more
could be done to ensure that the Trustees and Governors challenge their leaders more vigorously.

Recent reviews of Trust schools and Trust-wide assessment information reflect a positive pattern of ongoing
change. Pupils are making better progress because the quality of teaching, learning and assessment is
improving. High-level ambition and raised expectations are at the heart of this cultural shift.

Attendance is a mixed picture across the Trust depending largely on local circumstances but more needs to be
done to decrease persistent absence.

The rate of fixed-rate exclusions across the Trust has reduced from the previous year. Recently introduced
training for governors is strengthening the level of challenge they offer to school Ieaders in cases where
exclusion is proposed but not yet completed.

The primary curriculum is tailored to meet pupils’ needs and the context of each individual school. While
Headteachers have the autonomy to develop their own school’s plan, close checks are made on the differences
that curriculum planning is making to improving pupils’ outcomes over time. Where necessary, adaptations are
made in consultation with Trust leaders, based on other expertise avatlable from within the Trust or advice
available from external partners.

The Head of Finance and Opérations provides increasingly effective support for schools and future plans will
enhance this. While judicious use of resources offers value for money and economies of scale, cost savings are
well grounded in senior leaders’ commitment to improving life chances for all Berlesduna pupils.

Within a landscape of national and local challenges in teacher recruitment, retention and supply, we have
entrenched the mantra of ‘growing your own' teaching teams. Vacant posts are offered not just as jobs, but as
career development opportunities. There are currently very few gaps across the Trust's workforce.

Quality-assurance systems are systematic and thorough. High levels of consistency are evident in improvement

planning and monitoring routines across schools. For example, single improvement plans, ‘school outcomes’

and other performance documentation are scrutinised in regular academy improvement visits. These visits track
- previous. successes, the areas that need to improve and the next steps needed.

Cross-school teams work with the CEO and external partners, including the local authority, to ensure that the
judgements teachers make about the quality of pupils’ work are similar to those made in other schools. This
systematic approach has ensured that the accuracy of teachers’ assessment has continued to improve as
teachers become increasingly adept at using the information they hold.

The wealth of knowledge now available is combining to give Trust leaders and school staff the tools they need to
continue to improve the quality of provision across subjects, year groups and key stages.

The Trust offered an extensive range of professional development opportunities using expertise from within and
also from external partners, including the LA, Ambition Institute and the Billericay Teaching School Alliance.
Sessions covered the needs and interests of all staff teams, including non-teaching staff.

Covid-19 virus

With schools closing at the end of March for all pupils barring those of key workers, we found ourselves
delivering our lessons in different ways. Schools had pupils of mixed ages in one group and there was no need
‘to have all staff on site every day. Generally, each school-initiated rotas for staff and classroom usage was
minimised to allow for deep cleaning to take place in the areas occupied on a daily basis. Some staff fell into the
vulnerable category and were unable to attend school and we began to make much more use of our remote
technology platforms, with a lot of staff working from home. Those pupils of non-key workers were offered online
platforms for learning and photocopied packs available for those families without access to laptops, tablets, and
the internet.
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As a government funded organisation we were fortunate to be in receipt of our monthly grant funding, but our
budgets are propped up with extra income from school dinners, breakfast and after school clubs as well as some
lettings income, and as these services were not available, our overall income has been negatively affected. Our
expenditure has remained constant, as our overheads have not reduced in this period.

When schools reopened to all pupils, the pressure. to adhere to the guidelines regarding space, ventilation, and
separating groups into “bubbles” was not something all buildings could easily facilitate. Settings have had to
stagger start and end times of the day, ensure there are enough teaching staff allocated to groups, and bear in
mind succession planning is maintained in case any of the leadership team need to isolate. Staff wellbeing and
morale has been paramount in all of the Trusts decisions.

We have been fortunate that we have not had shortages of PPE therefore allowing us to keep our staff safe and
our cleaning regimens have been able to withstand the higher demands placed upon them with the help and
dedication of the site teams in all of our schools. As the new "norms” for our education settings bed in, and we
ask our staff to carry out routines not required previously, we have been met with such positive and supportive
attitudes from everyone that it has enabled us to continue to provide the best education setting for our pupils to
thrive within and attain their goals.

Two of our schools applied for exceptional coronavirus support, being Cherry Tree Primary and Felmore Primary
School, recelvmg £14,991 and £7,605 respectively.

Going concern : .

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has'a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the
board of trustees continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. Further details regarding
the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement of accounting policies.
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Protecting the success of the academy trust

The Trust's ambition is, over time, to create a family of local primary and secondary schools working together in
a coherent manner to meet the needs of learners in the area and beyond. We therefore have the ambition to
increase the number of schools in the Trust, but in growing we will act in a timely and considered manner. We
feel a sense of responsibility and obligation to expand. We will only expand when we have the capacity to do so.
it is the responsibility of the Trust to build capacity as it develops.

in the first instance we are keen to invite good or outstanding primary, secondary and special schools to join us
in order to strengthen our school improvement model. We recognise the many benefits of a cross phase Trust,
offering seamless progression and optimising learners’ progress.

When a school is proposed to be part of our MAT we consider:
° Moral obligation
Size of school and designation ‘
Financial position of school
Distance between schools
Ofsted category of the school

However, our moral obligation to raise standards and address underperformance remains the overriding
consideration and this must be considered in terms of ensuring no existing ‘children are at detriment.

Our Trust will serve a range of communities including those with relatively high levels of deprivation. What we
won't do: '

¢ Put competition before collaboration.

e Expand through sponsorship without all existing academies being in a strong position

° Nor do anything that would be detrimental to any young person, staff or school in a neighbouring

community.

The Trust will apply these principles in context, not rigidly ruling out schools wishing to join who do not meet all
of the criteria. In considering any application to join, the Trust will complete a careful due diligence process. Any
new school joining the Trust will be asked to fully commit to the Trust's operational model.

Succession Planning ,
Within its growth strategy and overall school improvement strategy Berlesduna Academy Trust is committed to
developing the workforce in ways which:
- o distribute existing leadership throughout the schools
» utilise the strengths of individual staff and enable them to contribute to their maximum potential
 provide continuing professional development opportunities which
> enable staff to progress within the schools
e contribute to leadership capacity throughout Berlesduna Trust .

Financial review

The majority of Berlesduna Academy Trust's income is derived from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA), an agent of the Department for Education (DfE), in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is
limited to specific purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2020 and the
associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The results for the year are shown on the Statement of Financial Activities.
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Total incoming resources from educational operations in the year ended 31 August 2020 amounted to £15.5m.
£1.9m related to other capital income. The total revenue income in the year ended 31 August 2020 was £17.5m.

Total resources expended in the year amounted to £17.6m. This includes a depreciation charge of £891k.
Total net expenditure for the period was £44k.

After accounting for the net actuarial loss of £743k on the local government pension scheme as calculated by
the scheme actuary, the overall net decrease in the Trust's fund balances was £793k. Accordingly, the balance
sheet as at 31 August 2020 shows total funds of £39.9m.

Reserves policy

The Academy Trust considers it prudent for academy schools to maintain a level of usable reserves sufficient to
cover unexpected and unplanned events so that the academy’s primary objective is preserved. At the same time
the Trustees wish to ensure that it uses it's funding to benefit the students in its care which implies an imperative
to consider actively the use of reserves to enhance educational provision.

In deciding the level of reserves trustees will take into account the following:
* Uncertainty, turbulence or expected reduction in funding arrangements
* Impact of Pension and HMRC changes on ‘employer payroll costs
° The need for any large project spend to include facilities development, ICT investment or building
condition needs

° Fluctuations in pupil numbers, particularly falling roll numbers

. * Cash flow issues

¢ The trust's consolidated annual budget

A programme to build reserves should be agreed and clearly documented as part of the budget setting process,
by the Headteacher, Head of Finance and Operations, Trustees and Local Governing Body, in conjunction with
the CEO.

The academy school must monitor the progress of its reserve schedule and provide a report to the Trustees with
the annual Budget Forecast Return.

The Trustees expect academy schools to hold appropriate levels of reserves, as their budgets allow, in order to
fulfil their educational objectives.

Restricted Reserves

Restricted Revenue Reserves are represented by the main funding for the academy which is the General
Annual Grant and other central funding streams, Local Authority funding and other Government grants/income
that are received for a specific project or purpose i.e. Pupil Premium, UIFSM, PE & Sports Grant etc. These
funds are restricted for the use according to the funding agreements of donors’ instructions.

Local Reserves
The Trustees would like academy schools to build their reserves over the next 5 years to equate to one month’s
GAG as a contingency for unexpected emergencies.

The Trustees consider a capital reserve programme for the replacement of ICT equipment appropriate, to reduce
the budget impact, in any single year, of large scale equipment.

Academy schools should try to have a ‘roling’ programme to ensure ICT hardware and infrastructure is
replaced/maintained to ensure up to date and effective technology is embedded throughout the school.

Central Reserves
Any reserves accumulated by the Trust should be utilised as the Board of Trustees deen appropriate.
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Unrestricted Reserves )

Unrestricted local reserves are made up of the academy's activities for generating funds, investment income and
other donations which are expendable at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance to achieve the objectives of
the school. The trust has no current limit for the appropriate limit of unrestricted reserves however academies
are encouraged to demonstrate how unrestricted reserves are to be utilised by means of its school development
and financial management plans.

Reporting and Monitoring
The Audit Committee are responsible for ensuring that the level and use of reserves is agreed and monitored.

Each academy will make a 3 year forecast as part of its budget planning.

Appeals Process

' Berlesduna Academy Trust will have due regard to the funding needs and allocation of each individual academy,
ensuring there is a fair distribution of funds to support the Trusts educational objectives. If a Headteacher wishes
to challenge the level of funding received they should first appeal to the CEO.

If the Headteacher feels that their grievance is not resolved, they may then appeal to the Secretary of State for
Education, whose decision will be final.

Reserves

As at 31 August 2020, total reserves amounted to £39,888k. This total includes total general reserves of £875k
which consists of the restricted general reserves of £675k and the unrestricted general funds of £200k, which
are effectively the Trust's free reserves.

Total reserves as at 31 August 2020 also recognised a liability in respect of the Trust's share it the Local
Government Pension Scheme deficit of £9,977k. As the Local Government Pension Scheme is a funded
scheme, employers’ pension contributions will increase in line with the deficit over a period of years. The Trust
will not be liable for a lump sum and the increased pension contribution will be met from the Trust's budgeted
annual income. Accordingly, there is no direct impact on the free reserves of the Trust in recognising the deficit
on the pension scheme.

Investment policy :
Trustees will ensure that investment risk is properly managed. When considering whether to make an
investment, Trustees will;
* Act within their powers to invest, as set out in our articles of association; '
* Exercise caution in all investments, reducing risk and ensuring that the trust acts with the utmost
integrity;
-» Take investment advice from a professional adviser, as appropriate |
e Ensure that exposure to investment products is tightly controlled so that security of funds takes
precedence over revenue maximisation; and
° Ensure that all investment decisions are in the best interest of the trust and command broad public
support.

Trustees will seek prior approval from the Education and Skills Funding Agency for investment transactions that
are novel or contentious.

Novel transactions are those of which the Academy Trust has no experience, or are outside the range of
normal business activity for the Trust. :

Contentious transactions are those which might give rise to criticism of the Trust by Parliament, the public and
the media.

We only invest funds in low risk and easily-accessible accounts. Funds will be placed in bank accounts with a
withdrawal notice of no more than 12 weeks. Risk is managed through diversification of investments, ensuring
that the security of funds takes precedence over revenue maximisation. Funds will only be placed with banking
institutions that are regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and with good credit ratings.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Academy Trust has a formal risk management process in place to identify and assess all risks
associated with the organisation; this enables the instigation of risk mitigation strategies. A Risk Register is
in place which is subject to regular review and made available to all staff. Key members of staff and
Trustees are involved in the preparation of the Risk Register, overseen by the Finance and Audit
Committee. All members of staff are aware of the risk management policy and the controls in place to limit
exposure to risk. The Risk Register identifies the types of risk the Academy Trust might encounter and rates
the risks in terms of likelihood and impact. This ensures that the most significant risks are highlighted,
appropriate strategies to be implemented and the aliocation of resources.

As the majority of the Academy Trust's funding is derived from the ESFA, via the Department for Education,
the Trustees consider this element of funding to be reasonably secure. The most significant risks relating to
this income result from changing government policy on school funding, the effect of increasing contribution
rates for stakeholder pensions and NI rebate deletion, and the, effect of changing pupil numbers. The
Trustees have laid out their strategies for dealing with these risks within the Academy Trust's Risk Register.
Trust Risks

[AENtiNEAIRISK s o e, 2 [SHrategiestoMtiGate. . . . .. o bl nr e

Improvements in the Quality of
Education -are not secured and
schools when Inspected drop to
RI' resulting in a reputational
damage to the Trust

Deployment of Trust resources to secure rapid improvement

CPD for teachers who need to improve from RI to Good

Trustees to monitor anonymised PM targets of teachers who are
experiencing difficulty '

A specific area does not
improve rapidly enough and
affects the whole school Ofsted
Judgement

Deployment of Trust or external resources
Short term action plan monitored by CEO
External support

Significant groups of chiidren
make insufficient progress or
there remains significant gaps
between groups and the rest of
the pupils

Close monitoring of PPG and Sports Premium Grant

Monitoring of significant groups regularly to
performance

identify under-

External reviews

Performance of schools not
improving sufficiently or quickly
enough impacts on the
reputation of the Trust

Prioritise resources to ensure rapid school improvement

Ensure that monitaring systems and accurate assessments
are coming from the Executive Leadership, CEQ and
Standards Focused Trust Meeting

Link Trustees to provide another layer of support and
challenge

Deploy effective leadership effectively

External support

Focus on retention of quality leaders and Trustees
Succession planning and talent management.
Academy ambassadors.

Key leaders leave, resign or
move from the Trust

National shortage of high quality
school leaders impacts on the
ability to recruit to academy
teams

Succession planning within existing staff teams

Programme of leadership training within the Trust

PM career-based expectations and leadership roles at UPS
teacher

The quality of internal and
external reviews insufficiently
robust and does not identify

identify these early enough

significant areas of weakness or

Bespoke support in challenging schools
Bespoke timescales on reviews and external inspection
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Staff absence rates continue to
rise and supply costs place
budgets at risk

Close monitoring of the budget position by CEO
Staff absence insurance policy

Staff absence  significantly
affects the stability of the
Academy to deliver high quality
education, behaviour and safety
and therefore outcomes

Flexible deployment of resources across the Trust

HSE investigation/intervention
following  multiple  reported
accidents or significant harm to
staff/pupil/ visitor resulting in
potential fines or prosecution

Robust procedures in place for investigating and reporting accidents/|
incidents.

Risk assessments in place for pupils, activities etc. .

Regular H&S inspections, audits and reviews from external H&S
advisor

Strong and evolving H&S culture

Staff member, family or visitor
sues the Trust for an accident
resulting in risk of financial and
reputational loss

Risk Protection Arrangements in place to cover any liability costs
Use of experienced media/PR support providers to mitigate any
reputational damage

Significant damage to a Trust
building or resource resulting in
high cost repair

Risk Protection Arrangements in place to cover any property
damage costs

SCR does not capture all adults
in the building and is not found
to be compliant resuiting in a
risk to an Ofsted outcome and/
or danger to pupils

Effective systems in place, tested and reviewed regularly both
internally and externally

Safeguarding training for all staff and in particular specific training for
those involved with the SCR

Effective security arrangements and procedures in place for entry and
exit of buildings

Sickness absence levels
increase as a result of incidents/
accidents at work

Accidents/incidents reviewed by SLTs and analysed by SEN teams
Raising awareness with staff from lessons learnt

Evolving H&S culturs

Mental Health training for senior leaders

Financial resources are
insufficient to fund pupil needs

Effective financial planning with school leaders

Robust ECHPs identifying needs and resources

Firm approach with commissioners regarding places to ensure
appropriate level of funding for each and every pupil

Building maintenance costs are
unaffordable and capital funding
bids are unsuccessful

Building condition surveys completed for all building to identify priorities
and investment required to inform financial planning

Seek additional funding and/or alternative income sources

IT systems are hacked, and
data lost

Business continuity arrangements in place for backing up data, both
on and off site

Additional investment in new improved IT network and systems to
improve security

No cash flow and

put Trust under a financial notice

liquidity so
creditors are not paid, and Trust
runs at a deficit. ESFA intervene andlit is required :

Bank accounts are reviewed regularly
The Reserve Policy in place ensures cash would be available as
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Financial and risk management objectives and policies

Credit Risk

The Trust considers its credit risk to be low due to the nature of its business. Any loan requested would be
presented to the Governing Body for authorisation. The Trust has no loans at this time.

.Cash flow and liquidity '
Risks to liquidity and cash flow are minimal as bank accounts are reviewed regularly. The Reserve Policy in
place ensures cash would be available as it is required.

Fundraising
Fundraising for the Trust takes the following forms:

° Fundraising on behalf of our schools may sometimes be achieved through Parent Teacher

Associations / Friends of the schools holding summer fairs and similar events;

° Donations from parents; and

» Students and staff engaging in fundraising for external charities
The Trust aims to meet the fundraising code of practice which is that any fundraising will be legal, open, honest
and respectful. The Trust will ensure protection of the public, including vulnerable people, from unreasonably
intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches, and undue pressure to donate and ensure that all funds raised for
a particular cause must be used for that particular cause. The Trust has not received any fundraising complaints.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

Energy consumption kWh
Aggregate of energy consumption in the year 2,616,687
Emissions of CO2 equivalent metric tonnes metric tonnes
Scope 1 - direct emissions
- Gas combustion 253.03
- Fuel consumed for owned transport 0.21

_ 253.24

Scope 2 - indirect emissions _ )
- Electricity purchased : 288.93 -

Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the academy trust 542.27
Total gross emissions : 1,084.44
Intensity ratio

Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.18

Quantification and reporting methodology
We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2020 UK Government’s Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting. :

Intensity measurement
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.
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Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

We have had an additional block built on one school site in the academic year and the building has been built
with energy efficiency in mind; it is set to be an energy neutral addition. We are gradually replacing lights with
LEDs. With the onset of COVID, we have increased video conferencing technology for staff and external
meetings, to reduce the need for travel between sites.

Plans for future periods

Vision Statement

The vision of the Berlesduna Academy Trust is to create and foster a culture of high aspiration, enjoyment for
learning, academic success and lifelong skills amongst all pupils, regardless of their social, economic or cultural
background. .

Aims and Values
The aim is to become a strong local partnership of schools. Whilst we aim to build a strong and cohesive
identity, we recognise that each school within the Trust has its own unique characteristics. Collaboration and
joint working ensure that all schools within the Trust can share in, and benefit from, each other's strengths. The
aim as an Academy Trust is to work together to:
= make a positive difference to the lives of the pupils .
< have an unflinching commitment to closing the gap between high and low performers within the schools
o transform the learning conditions of others so that growth, commitment, engagement, and constant
spawning of leadership in others is being fostered

School Improvement Strategy

School improvement is never a static concept: it is ever evolving as the drive for higher standards demands
creativity and innovation. It requires openness, honesty, transparency, reflection, energy and flexibility. There is a
need for the Trust to have an explicit strategy for ensuring that it secures its goal of “excellent outcomes for
every child”. This means ensuring that the Trust has an in-depth knowledge of each of its academies and their
current performance to:

o Sustain success where it already exists

= Develop strengths where there is a need to improve

* Implement rapid improvement strategies where performance is weak
* Share strengths through mutuai support and challenge

The Trust will deliver school improvement by:

» Appointing a School Improvement Partner to provide quality assurance
Carrying out Due Diligence on new schools
Allocating specific funding for this purpose
Providing a core offer for all Trust schools
Providing additional support appropriate to individual school needs
Alignment and standardisation of appropriate processes and systems
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The School Standards KPIs and the Trust Abiding Principles
Our School Standards KPIs/Abiding Principles are:
Al MAT schools are at least good and/or improve their Ofsted inspection rating (Ofsted)
e The percentage of teaching across the MAT that is good or outstanding is at least 90% (Quality of
Education)
° That the Pupil Premium Grant is used effectively to ensure disadvantaged pupils make accelerated
progress (Pupil Premium)
° That the Sports Premium Grant is used effectively to contribute towards the health and wellbeing of our
pupils (Sports Premium)
* School attendance data is improving including the rate of persistent absence (Attendance)
° Schools have a decrease in the numbers of fixed term and permanent exclusions. (Behaviour and
Attitudes)
e That we fully commit to the Essex Inclusion Statement across all our schools and recognise Inclusion in
its wider sense (Inclusion)
* Progress and standard indicators are at least in line with national averages for all groups in all schools
indicating a high quality of provision (Quality of Education Outcomes)

Monitoring of KPIs and Trust Abiding Principles
The monitoring process will continuously inform self-evaluation and planning within each school. These will
include:
o tracking of learner progress and planned interventions to support each learner’s success
+ analysis of attendance and punctuality (with a consistent strategy agreed across all the schools to
reduce persistent absence)
° analysis of data relating to learner’s behaviour and safety
o scrutiny of learner’s work
= analysis of standards of learning and teaching (including moderated lesson observations to ensure
consistent judgements about standards across all the schools)
° learning walks involving senior and middle leaders and governors
» evidence that professional development programmes are directly linked to the outcomes of lesson
observations and appraisal objectives
o detailed analysis of outcomes for learners
= consultation with pupils, staff and parents across each school and partners across the wider community
(this will be done through formally constituted groups, focus groups and surveys arranged throughout
the year)

An integrated approach will be undertaken alongside the Academy, taking full account of their own self-
evaluation and identified priorities. We will also establish the areas of strength and expertise that can be shared
across the Trust.

. Accountability and Responsibility '

The Trust's Standards Focussed Trust Meeting alongside the CEO will take the lead in managing the monitoring
procedures and in instructing individual Headteachers to implement agreed plans for improvement, as
appropriate.

The ethos of the Trust Board is that best results will be achieved when the Local Governing Body of each school
receives a level of responsibility and autonomy appropriate to its specific circumstances. Each Headteacher is
held accountable by their own Governing Body for the overall effectiveness of their school, including the
academic standards. Each school provides challenge for the Headteacher directly through their Appraisal
Committee, which is supported both by the CEQ. The involvement of the CEO ensures consistency in terms of
the rigour and challenge of objectives, success criteria and agreed evidence across the Trust. Each committee
meets at least three times a year in order to include a mid-year review of progress towards objectives.

There is an expectation that each Headteacher will take the lead on their own school improvement processes,
but there are a number of elements that the Trust expects to be in place and to be shared with the CEO and/or
the Executive Leadership Group:
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School Improvement Elements )

Rationale: -~

An annual School Development Plan

To enable leaders to outline the goals, success criteria and
monitoring mileposts for improvement over the next 12
months, and to share the school's current performance, goals
and aspirations with staff and governors.

A School Self-Evaluation document

To generate an honest and reflective document that
summarises the school's overview of its performance based
on its self-evaluation.

An effective self-evaluation process

To put in place processes that enable leaders to measure:
° the quality of education,

e the quality of behaviour and personal development
° the quality of leadership,
° the quality of safeguarding and

¢ the school's overall effectiveness.

An effective tracking system

To establish a system for monitoring pupil progress and pupil
outcomes throughout the year for all pupils, as well as through
statutory assessment at the end of Key Stages.

Pupil voice

To ensure that a mechanism exists for listening to the pupil
voice.

Parent views

To draw upon a range of mechanisms to enable leaders to
gather the views of parents.

Staff voice

To draw upon a range of mechanisms to enable leaders to
gather the views of staff including wellbeing and workload.

Continuous Professional Development
plan

To ensure that there is a mechanism for aligning CPD with the '
School Development Plan and across the MAT.

Monitoring and Support Plan

To ensure that there is a mechanism for aligning monitoring
with the School Development Plan and School Seif Evaluation
document.
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Auditor

In so far as the trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on 1.b~/‘i‘27/2Qand signed on its behalf by:

ST Tobin
Accounting Officer
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Scope of responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Berlesduna Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectlves and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the headteacher, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Berlesduna Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible
for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
E Patching (Chair of Trustees) 4 4
ST Tobin (Accounting Officer) 4 4
J Hunter 4 4
S Segger 4 4
SP West 4 4
R Taverner 2 4
G Glover 3 4
R Walsh 3 4
RAT Lovatt (Appointed 16 September 2020) 0 0

The Trust completes the necessary Financial Management and Governance self-assessments and ‘considers
that the Trust Board is appropriately balanced and knowledgeable. The Trust seeks guidance from its
professional advisors and other academies and similar bodies as necessary to support the knowledge and
experience of the Board. The Trustees will continue to monitor the composition of the Board. Further details of
the Boards role and responsibilities are included within the Trustees’ Report.

The Finance and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. The purpose of the Audit
and Finance Committee is to share the ‘workload of the Accounting Officer in managing and monitoring the
organisation’s finances and premises matters. The Finance and Audit Committee has formally met 2 times
during the year and 4 times for monitoring meetings and to approve the annual accounts. An Audit Committee
exists to oversee the year end audit process.

This Finance and Audit Committee provides an opportunity for detailed discussion and consideration of financial
and property matters with regular reporting to the full Board of Trustees. it is given delegated authority for most
financial decision-making, but the full board of trustees as a whole remains accountable and must still remain
actively engaged in financial and premises matters.
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Benefits of the finance and audit committee include:

°

© o o o

Helping to prevent fraud by ensuring that all tasks associated with the finance function are not
performed by one person without supervision (segregation of duties);

Allowing the Full Governing Body meetings to focus on a wider range of issues, as detailed

Financial and property discussions can take place within the sub-committee;

Enabling more democratic control of the organisation’s finances and estate;

Spreading the burden of financial and premises management, thereby also potentially improving it's
quality; and

Helping train new committee members in financial and premises related matters.

Matters discussed during the year 31 August 2020 include;

Full review of finance and premises polices;

Agreement of financial regulations and scheme of delegation;

Regular review of the current financial position;

Review of long term (3-5 years) financial position;

Assurance work on health and safety matters relating to the estate;

Investigations into furthering the Trust's charitable aim through community involvement;

Continuation of the audit committee to meet statutory needs; )

Review of capital grants received in year for the improvement of the estate; and

Consideration of the school's assets and fulfiment of the Trust's charitable obligations to maximise the
benefit of those assets with regards to asset disposal and reinvestment.

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value
in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust
has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

improving Educational Results )
Our resources are directed where they will be most effective in meeting educational requirements, for éxample:

Robust tracking systems to record and monitor all aspects of pupil data including progress;

Continue to monitor staffing levels and deploy staff efficiently to support the curriculum and areas of
development;

Provide a programme of lesson observations and work scrutinise combined with intensive staff
development to ensure pupil progress;

Funding is allocated to optimal effect; providing targeted support and interventions for pupils such as
small group tuition, individual pupil support, after school clubs and additional curricular activities;
Working collaboratively with other schools, sharing good practice to improve training and improve
standards;

Implement strategies to improve attendance and end of key stage results; and

Provide increased pastoral and speech and language support for identified pupils.
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Better Purchasing
> As a group of eight schools, we have amassed a wide knowledge of our local and national suppliers
between us and can utilise our size/buying power to gain the best value and discounted rates wherever
possible.
° We have regular Trust finance team meetings where we share knowledge and purchasing experiences,
enabling us to get the best products/services.

Financial Governance and Oversight

o Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring of systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

= Regular monitoring review of reports and data sources within Governing Body meetings, monitoring of
the impact of activities and funding streams, such as Pupil premium;

o Regular reviews by the Finance and Audit Committee of reports of financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

° Robust finance procedures and regular policy reviews ensure the school is operating within the
regulations of the Academies Handbook;

» Comprehensive audit checks, monitoring and reporting on financial procedures and performance; and

» Reviewing appropriate financial benchmarking data, in order to compare the schools’ financial
performance with other, similar schools.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Berlesduna Academy Trust for
the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.: The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
trustees.

The risk and control framework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

° comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

* regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works: and expenditure
programmes;

o setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

o clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

o identification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
Essex County Council as internal auditor.
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The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
academy trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

° testing of payroll systems
o testing of purchase systems
" o testing of control/bank reconciliations

The internal auditor reports to the board of trustees twice a year through the finance and audit committee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the financial responsibilities of the board of trustees.

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

° the work of the internal auditor;

» the work of the external auditor;

° the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the finance and audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place. :

Approved by order of the board of trustees on ...} bﬁ?./z.) and signed on its behaif by:

72 SR

E Patching ST Tobin
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of Berlesduna Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety
and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that | and the academy trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
trustees and ESFA.

ST Tobin
Accounting Officer
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The trustees (who are also the directors of Berlesduna Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the trustees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to:

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

> observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020;

° make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

° state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

o prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for
the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on . kb/{’l/zg and signed on its behalf by:

=Tl

ST Tobin
Accounting Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BERLESDUNA
ACADEMY TRUST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of Berlesduna Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2020 which comprise
the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the
accounts, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charites SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to whlch the ISAs (UK) require us to

report to you where:

- the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the accounts is not
appropriate; or

- the trustees have not disclosed in the accounts any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the accounts are authorised for issue.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the accounts and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
accounts or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year
for which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' report, including the incorporated
strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respéct of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees' responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material
‘misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at; http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or

for the opinions we have formed.

V,

Kate Bell (Senior Statutory Auditor) _ :
for and on behalf of Rickard Luckin Limited ”“/2—/2-9

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor Phoenix House, Suite 8

Christopher Martin Road
Basildon

Essex

SS14 3EZ
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 May 2019 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Berlesduna Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parhament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to Berlesduna Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Berlesduna Academy Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Berlesduna Academy Trust and ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. .

Respective responsibilities of Berlesduna Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Berlesduna Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary. of State for Education dated 1 April 2016 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from
1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 fo 2020 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The .objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on -
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement -and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

* Reviewing the minutes of the meetings of the Governing Body and key sub committees;

e Evaluating internal control and review procedures, and reviewing findings of internal audit reviews;

o Reviewing action taken as a result of recommendations from internal audit procedures, external audit, and
ESFA updates;

o Evaluating and documenting internal controls and testing their application by walkthrough,

» Testing a sample of payments to ensure that they have been authorised in accordance with the Academy'’s
financial procedures and the Academies Financial Handbook.
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Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the -
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities

which govern them.

%Cl”éar( (cee (/9]
Reporting Accountant
Rickard Luckin Limited
Phoenix House, Suite 8
Christopher Martin Road
Basildon

Essex

SS14 3EZ

Dated: !b/IZ/&Q
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INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds - General Fixed asset 2020 2019
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from: .
Donations and capital grants 3 - - 1,886,522 1,886,522 1,553,257
Donations - transfer from local
authority on conversion 27 - (89,000) 41,700 (47,300) 20,592,699
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 145,651 15,381,955 - 15,527,606 12,049,794
Other trading activities 5 187,661 - - 187,661 290,397
Investments 6 1,031 - - 1,031 783
Total 334,343 15,292,955 1,928,222 17,555,520 34,486,930
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 4,174 - - 4,174 3,059
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations ] 8 189,962 16,513,717 891,342 17,595,021 14,308,205
Total 7 194,136 16,513,717 891,342 17,599,195 14,311,264
Net income/(expenditure) 140,207 (1,220,762) 1,036,880 (43,675) 20,175,666
Transfers between funds 18 (229,574) 149,497 80,077 - N
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes 20 - (749,000) - (749,000) (1,132,000)
Net movement in funds (89,367) (1,820,265) 1,116,957 (792,675) 19,043,666
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 289,515 (7,481,533) 47,872,334 40,680,316 21,636,650
Total funds carried forward 200,148 (9,301,798) 48,989,291 39,887,641 40,680,316
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Comparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Year ended 31 August 2019 - funds General Fixed asset 2019
Notes £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from: . '

Donations and capital grants 3 - - 1,553,257 1,553,257

Donations - transfer from local authority on

conversion ' 27 - (1,964,146) 22,556,845 20,592,699

Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations 4 245,375 11,804,419 - 12,049,794

Other trading activities 5 290,397 - - 290,397

Investments 6 783 - - 783

Total 536,555 9,840,273 24,110,102 34,486,930

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 7 3,059 ‘ - - 3,059

Charitable activities: . :

- Educational operations 8 424,486 13,183,877 699,842 14,308,205

Total 7 427,545 13,183,877 699,842 14,311,264

Net income/(expenditure) 109,010 (3,343,604) 23,410,260 20,175,666

Transfers between funds 18 (219,519) (8,064) 227,583 -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension

schemes 20 - (1,132,000) - (1,132,000)

Net movement in funds (110,509) (4,483,668) 23,637,843 19,043,666

Reconciliation of funds :

Total funds brought forward 400,024 (2,997,865) 24,234,491 21,636,650

Total funds carried forward 289,515 (7,481,533) 47,872,334 40,680,316
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Stocks

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds

- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Notes

13

14
15

16

20

18

18

2020
£ £

48,647,996

480,921

2,036,358

2,517,279

(1,300,634)

1,216,645
49,864,641
(9,977,000)

39,887,641

48,989,291
675,202

(9,977,000)
39,687,493
200,148

39,887,641

2019
£ £
47,460,933
640
979,395
1,716,309
2,696,344
(1,535,961)
1,160,383
48,621,316
(7,941,000)
40,680,316
47,872,334
459,467
(7,941,000).
40,390,801
289,515
40,680,316

The accounts on pages 35 to 60 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on ‘b/Z./QD and

are signed on their behalf by:

ST Tobin
Accounting Officer

Company Number 10267656
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities 21

Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2020
£ £
469,201
469,201
1,031
62,294
1,824,228
(2,036,705)
(149,152)
320,049
1,716,309

2,036,358

2019
£ £
(324,155)
682,017
357,862
783
134,493
1,418,764
(1,642,802)
(88,762)
269,100
1,447,209
1,716,309
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BERLESDUNA ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Accounting policies

Berlesduna Academy Trust is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of business is given
on page 1 and the nature of its operations are set out in the trustees' report.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)),
the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006. .

Going concern .

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts.

Conversion to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintained school. to an academy trust involved the transfer of identifiable
assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for £nil consideration. The substance of the transfer is
that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from predecessor schools to the academy trust have
been valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based on that of equivalent items. The
amounts have been recognised under the appropriate balance sheet categories, with a corresponding
amount recognised in Donations — transfer from local authority on conversion in the Statement of Financial
Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds.
Further details of the transaction are set out in note 27.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants .

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability.
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15

Accounting policies (Continued)

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which
they are expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations’ v
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent
the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from
other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it
is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the
accounts until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Donated fixed assets )

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on
a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent,
and depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure” incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

19

Accounting policies {Continued)

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement
of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Long leasehold land and buildings l 125 years & 2% Straight line
Computer equipment 33% Straight line
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 10% Straight line

A review for.impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalis between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of financial activities.

Liabilities ‘

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event,
it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
of services it must provide.

Leased assets .
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
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1.12

1.13

Accounting policies : {Continued)

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place
and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving
stock.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively
to charitable purposes. )

Pensions benefits . '
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in
the period to which they relate. - ‘

The LGPS is a funded muiti-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each
balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and
the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the
statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and
interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair vaiue of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other
recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised
gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purpbses imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financiai year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed
at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2020. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement

In the application of the company's accounting policies, the trustees are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. The only case whereby this arises is in respect of the
depreciation policies relating to the fixed assets held by the academy, which are based on the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2020 2019

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 1,886,522 1,886,522 1,553,257
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4

Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
DfE / ESFA grants
General annual grant (GAG) - 11,963,973 11,963,973 9,503,146
Other DfE group grants - 2,386,373 2,386,373 1,600,973
- 14350,346 14,350,346 11,104,119
Other government grants :
Local authority grants ‘ - 894,900 894,900 700,300
Other government grants - 114,113 114,113 -
- 1,009,013 1,009,013 700,300
Other funding
Other incoming resources 145,651 - 145,651 245,375
Exceptional government funding
Coronavirus exceptional support - 22,596 22,596 -
Total funding 145,651 15,381,955 15,527,606 12,049,794

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes
in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under "exceptional

government funding".

The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £22,596 for costs in relation to deep
cleaning of the Academy, free school.meals payments to parents and additional premises expenses. these

are included in notes 7 and 8 below as appropriate.

Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2020 2019

£ £ £ £

Hire of facilities 8,650 - 8,650 5,841
Catering income 140,337 - 140,337 163,474
Trip income 34,727 - 34,727 119,816
Other income . 3,947 - 3,947 1,266
187,661 - 187,661 290,397
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6 Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 1,031 - 1,031 783
7 Expenditure
Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2020 2019
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising funds
- Direct costs - - 4,174 4,174 3,059
Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 10,817,357 - 845377 11,662,734 9,035,288
- Allocated support costs 3,036,167 1,820,969 1,075,151 5,932,287 5272917
13,853,524 1,820,969 1,924,702 17,599,195 14,311,264
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2020 2019
£ £
Fees payable to auditor for:
- Audit 27,750 36,495
- Other services 10,300 7,047
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 891,342 699,842
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 144,000 118,000
8 Charitable activities
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2020 2019.
; £ £ £ £
Direct costs
Educational operations 68,526 11,594,208 11,662,734 9,035,288
Support costs
Educational operations 121,436 5,810,851 5,932,287 5,272,917
189,962 17,405,059 17,595,021 14,308,205
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8 Charitable activities
Analysis of costs

Direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff costs
Technology costs

Educational supplies and services
Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Support costs

Support staff costs

Depreciation

Technology costs

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Energy costs

Rent, rates and other occupancy costs
Insurance

Catering

Finance costs

Other support costs

Governance costs

9 Central services

(Continued)

2020 2019

£ £
10,848,877 8,438,907
20,089 16,792
419,629 412,062
280,635 -
93,494 167,527
11,662,734 9,035,288
3,045,127 2,693,398
891,342 699,842
135,482 77,203
391,379 259,606
216,639 112,078
167,624 146,027
99,895 52,920
54,090 82,329
376,070 337,036
144,000. 118,000
147,224 193,429
263,415 501,049
5,932,287 5,272,917

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

human resources;

financial services;

legal services;

educational support services; or
others as arising.

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

» flat percentage of 5% of GAG
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9 Central services (Continued)
The amounts charged during the year were as follows: ) 2020 2019

£ £

Merrylands Primary School and Nursery 89,706 95,876
Whitmore Primary School and Nursery 113,245 106,849

The Willows Primary School and Nursery 109,917 104,539
Crays Hill Primary School 27,980 20,112
Felmore Primary School 80,752 31,692
Cherry Tree Primary School and Nursery 82,089- 34,316
Fairhouse Primary School 81,188 27,151

St Mary's Church of England Primary School - -

584,877 420,435
10 Staff
Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:
2020 2019
£ £
Wages and salaries 9,772,618 8,037,464
Social security costs 751,509 647,061
Pension costs 3,207,842 2,354,735
Staff costs - employees 13,731,969 11,039,260
Agency staff costs 121,555 35,836
Staff restructuring costs - 21,984

13,853,524 11,097,080
Staff development and other staff costs E 40,480 35,225

Total staff expenditure 13,894,004 11,132,305

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments - 21,984
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11

Staff (Continued)

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2020 2019

Number Number

Teachers 129 127
Administration and support 332 332
Management 29 29
490 488

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was: ’

2020 2019

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 5 1
£70,001 - £80,000 - 1
£80,001 - £90,000 2 1
£110,001 - £120,000 - 1
£120,000 - £130,000 1 -

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1 as well as deputy headteachers and assistant headteachers. The total amount of
employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the academy trust was £1,024,113 [2019: £715,513].

Trustees' remuneration and expenses !

One or more of the trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an
employment with the academy trust. The headteacher and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in
respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of headteacher and staff members under their
contracts of employment, and not in respect of their services as trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Sean Tobin (CEO):
* Remuneration £120,001 - £125,000 (2019: £115,001-£120,000)
° Employer's pension contributions £25,001 - £30,000 (2019: £15,001-£20,000)

No expenses were reimbursed to trustees during the year.
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13

14

Insurance for trustees and officers

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers
indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

Tangible fixed assets

Long Computer Fixtures, Total
leasehold equipment fittings &
land and equipment
buildings
£ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2019 48,177,956 299,110 537,072 49,014,138
Transfer on conversion 17,000 4,250 20,450 41,700
Additions 1,902,685 69,125 64,8905 2,036,705
At 31 August 2020 - 50,097,641 372,485 622,417 51,092,543
Depreciation
At 1 September 2019 1,227,261 216,220 109,724 1,553,205
Charge for the year 769,607 61,197 60,538 891,342
At 31 August 2020 1,996,868 277,417 170,262 2,444,547
Net book value
At 31 August 2020 48,100,773 95,068 452,155 48,647,996
At 31 August 2019 46,950,695 82,890 427,348 ' 47,460,933

On conversation of St Mary's Church of England Primary School to Academy status, leasehold land valued
at £17,000 and other assets valued at £24,700 were transferred from Essex County Council to the Trust for
nil consideration. This is recognised as a donation in the Statement of Financial Activities. '

Stocks
2020 2019
£ , E
Other stock - 640
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15 Debtors

Trade debtors

VAT recoverable

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

16  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

17 Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2019
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2020

2020 2019
£ £

3,994 9,451
111,816 141,885
3,679 203
361,432 827,856
480,921 979,395
2020 2019

£ £
305,687 624,106
433,550 416,894
146,429 13,429
414,968 481,532
1,300,634 1,535,961
2020 2019

£ £
265,558 328,327
328,327 160,917
(328,327) . (160,917)
265,558 328,327
265,558 328,327

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for Free School

Meals, Nursery income and SEN income.
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Funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure transfers 2020
_ £ £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 209,816 11,963,973 (11,670,484) 149,497 652,802
Other DfE / ESFA grants - 2,408,969  (2,408,969) - -
Other government grants - 1,009,013 (986,613) - 22,400
Other restricted funds 249,651 - (249,651) - -
Pension reserve (7,941,000) (89,000)  (1,198,000) (749,000) (9,977,000)

(7,481,633) 15,292,955 (16,513,717) (599,503) (9,301,798)

Restricted fixed asset funds

Inherited on conversion 44,327,539 41,700 (747,213) - 43,622,026
DfE group capital grants 3,544,795 1,886,522 (144,129) 80,077 5,367,265

47,872,334 1,928,222 (891,342) 80,077 48,989,291
Total restricted funds 40,390,801 17,221,177 (17,405,059) (519,426) 39,687,493

Unrestricted funds
General funds 289,515 334,343 (194,136) (229,574) 200,148

Total funds 40,680,316 17,555,520 (17,599,195)  (749,000) 39,887,641

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant

The General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running costs of the school including salary costs,
overheads, premises costs and curriculum costs. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State,
the Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Other DfE/ESFA and government grants
Other grants include grants received from the DfE and Local Education Authorities for specific purposes.

Fixed asset fund
The fixed asset fund includes grants received from the DfE and other sources to finance the purchase of
tangible fixed assets.

Pension reserve
The pension reserve is the element of the local government pension fund liability attributable to the Trust.

Transfer between funds :
Atransfer between funds was necessary to reflect the funding of activities in the year.
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18 Funds (Continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at ’ Gains, Balance at

1 September losses and 31 August

2018 Income Expenditure transfers 2019

£ £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds )

General Annual Grant (GAG) 76,135 9,503,146 (9,361,401) (8,064) 209,816
Other DfE / ESFA grants - 1,600,973 (1,600,973) - -
Other government grants - 700,300 (700,300) - -
Other restricted funds - 788,854 (539,203) - 249,651
Pension reserve (3,074,000) (2,753,000) (982,000) (1,132,000) (7,941,000)

(2,997,865) 9,840,273 (13,183,877) (1,140,064) (7.481,533)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 22,850,854 22,556,845 (811,701) (268,459) 44,327,539
DfE group capital grants 1,383,637 1,653,257 111,859 496,042 3,544,795

24,234,491 24,110,102 (699,842) 227,583 47,872,334

Total restricted funds 21,236,626 33,950,375 (13,883,719) (912,481) 40,390,801

Unrestricted funds
General funds 400,024 536,555 (427,545) (219,519) 289,515

Total funds 21,636,650 34,486,930 (14,311,264) (1,132,000) 40,680,316
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Funds

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:

Merrylands Primary School and Nursery
Whitmore Primary School and Nursery

The Willows Primary School and Nursery

Crays Hill Primary School
Felmore Primary School

Cherry Tree Primary School and Nursery

Fairhouse Primary School

St Mary's Church of England Primary School

Central services

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund

Pension reserve

Total funds

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Merrylands Primary School

and Nursery

Whitmore Primary School
and Nursery

The Willows Primary
School and Nursery
Crays Hill Primary School
Felmore Primary School
Cherry Tree Primary
School and Nursery
Fairhouse Primary School
St Mary's Church of
England Primary School
Central services

10,817,357

(Continued)
2020 2019
£ £
158,340 169,549
68,842 (73,936)
37,397 1,749
251,807 247,791
133,082 187,472
347,940 282,966
20,108 98,558
(18,274) -
(123,893) (165,167)
875,349 748,982
48,989,291 47,872,334
(9,.877,000)  (7,941,000)
39,887,640 40,680,316

Teaching and Other costs )
educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2020 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,776,741 308,028 113,216 206,049 2,404,034 2,782,057
2,008,999 279,318 200,429 307,759 2,796,505 2,862,871
1,977,177 310,605 140,846 293,865 2,722493 2,811,541
447,404 50,017 39,466 134,960 671,847 542,172
1,415,088 358,277 67,340 222,488 2,063,193 2,178,689
1,583,835 242,397 87,401 230,710 2,144,343 1,024,606
1,392,248 191,066 105,724 326,013 2,015,051 817,300
51,272 9,283 1,116 6,402 68,073 -
164,593 -~ 242,136 ‘89,839 127,746 624,314 403,613

1,991,127 845,377 1,855,992 15,509,853

13,422,849
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
’ £ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 48,647,996 48,647,996
Current assets 689,970 1,486,014 341,295 2,517,279
Creditors falling due within one year (489,822) (810,812) - (1,300,634)
Defined benefit pension liability - (9,977,000) - (9,977,000)
Total net assets 200,148 (9,301,798) 48,989,291 39,887,641
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2019 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 47,460,933 47,460,933
Current assets 302,944 1,981,999 411,401 2,696,344
Creditors falling due within one year (13,429) (1,522,532) - (1,535,961)
Defined benefit pension liability - (7,941,000) - (7,941,000)
Total net assets 289,515 (7,481,533) 47,872,334 40,680,316

Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's empioyees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Essex County Council. Both are multiemployer
defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £240,798 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019: £213,618)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Reguilations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

e employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% empioyer
administration charge)

o total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

» the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPIl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,249,751 (2019: £740,087).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting docurﬁentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future
years are 23.9% for employers and 5.5-12.5% for employees.

As described in note 27 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy trust, being the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
joined the scheme in the period. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion
represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the academy trust at the balance
sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

-55-



BERLESDUNA ACAISEMY TRUST !

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

20

Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Total contributions made ‘ ' ' 2020 2019
£ £

Employer's contributions 961,000 952,000
Employees' contributions 235,000 190,000
Total contributions 1,196,000 1,142,000
Principal actuarial assumptions 2020 2019
: % %

Rate of increase in salaries ' 3.25 3.65
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation . 225 2.15
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.6 1.9
Inflation assumption (CPI) ' 2.25 2.15
RPI| assumption increase 3.05 3.15

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2020
Years
Retiring today
- Males 21.8
- Females 23.8
Retiring in 20 years
- Males . 23.2
- Females 25.2

2019
Years

213
23.6

23
254
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Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
+0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Adjustment to discount rate £ £ £
Present value of total obligation 16,437,000 16,915,000 |17,406,000
Projected service cost 2,318,000 2,395,000 2,474,000
+0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Adjustment to long term salary increase £ £ £
Present value of total obligation 16,957,000 | 16,915,000 116,875,000
Projected service cost 2,395,000 2,395,000 2,395,000
. +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Adjustment to pension increases and £ £ £
deferred revaluation
. Present value of total oblig_;ation 17,362,000 16,915,000 |16,480,000
' |Projected service cost 2,472,000 2,395,000 2,320,000
+1 Year None -1 Year
Adjustment to life expectancy £ £ £
assumptions
Present value of total obligation 17,516,000 16,915,000 |[16,335,000
Projected service cost 2,479,000 2,395,000 2,315,000
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2020 2019
Fair value Fair value
£ £
Equities 4,300,000 3,653,000
Bonds 388,000 327,000
Gilts 295,000 321,000
Cash 190,000 169,000
Property 538,000 465,000
Other assets 1,227,000 865,000
Total market value of assets 6,938,000 5,800,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £167,000 (2019: £112,000).
Amount recoegnised-in-the-Statement of Financial Activities 2020 20197
£ £
Current service cost 1,807,000 1,347,000
Past service cost 108,000 220,000
Interest cost 144,000 118,000
Total operating charge 2,159,000 1,685,000
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Pension and similar obligations

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2019

Obligations acquired on conversion
Current service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Past service cost

At 31 August 2020

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2019

Assets acquired on conversion
Interest income

Actuarial loss

Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

Administrative expenses

At 31 August 2020

(Continued)

2020
£

13,741,000
141,000
1,903,000
265,000
235,000 °
636,000
(114,000)
108,000

16,915,000

2020
£

5,800,000
52,000
121,000
(113,000)
961,000
235,000
(114,000)
(4,000)

6,938,000
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22

23

24

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting period (as per the statement of

financial activities)

Adjusted for:

Net deficit/(surplus) on conversion to academy

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Investment income receivable

Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Decreasel/(increase) in stocks

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities

Analysis of changes in net funds

Cash

Commitments under operating leases

1 September
2019

£

1,716,309

2019

2020

£ £

(43,675) 20,175,666
47,300 (2,325,040)
(1,886,522)  (1,162,367)
(1,031) (783)

1,054,000 864,000

144,000 118,000

891,342 699,842
640 (640)
498,474 (160,845)

(235,327) 599,361

469,201 18,807,194

Cash flows 31 August

2020

£ £

320,049 2,036,358

At 31 August 2020 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable .

operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in two and five years

Capital commitments

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts

2020 2019

£ £

6,977 9,179
901 7,878
7,878 17,057
2020 2018

£ £
114,433 401,658
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26

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the AFH and in accordance with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related party
transactions took place in the financial period.

C Tobin, spouse of S Tobin, the CEO, is employed by the academy trust as a Nursery Staff member. C
Tobin's appointment was made in open competition and S Tobin was not involved in the decision-making
process regarding appointment. C Tobin is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no
special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

T Tobin, son of S Tobin, the CEO, is employed by the academy trust as a Learning Support Assistant. T
Tobin’s appointment was made in open competition and S Tobin was not involved in the.decision-making
process regarding appointment. T Tobin is paid within the normal pay scale for his role and receives no
special treatment as a result of his relationship to a trustee.

C Kemp, spouse of N Kemp, Headteacher and local governor of Whitmore Primary School, is employed by
the academy trust as an Estate Manager. C Kemp's appointment was made in open competition and N
Kemp was not involved in the decision-making process regarding appointment. C Kemp is paid within the
normal pay scale for his role and receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a local
governor.

C Bromhead, spouse of J Bromhead, local governor of Felmore Primary School, is employed by the
academy trust as a-Teacher. C Bromhead's appointment was made in open competition and J Bromhead
was not involved in the decision-making process regarding appointment. C Bromhead is paid within the
normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a resuit of her relationship to a local
governor. :

T Robinson, spouse of R Robinson, Headteacher and local governor of Merrylands Primary School, is
employed by the academy trust as a Deputy Headteacher at Willows Primary School. T Robinson's
appointment was made in open competition and R Robinson was not involved in the decision-making
process regarding appointment. T Robinson is paid within the normal pay.scale for his role and receives no
special treatment as a result of his relationship to a local governor.

Expenditure related party transactions

Other than the transactions noted above, no other related party transactions took place in the period of
account other than the Trustees' remuneration already disclosed.-

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before
he or she ceases to be a member.
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